MINUTES PLAINVILLE TOWN COUNCIL COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL CENTER SPECIAL MEETING October 7, 2019 – 6:00p.m.

6:00pm WORK SESSION:

White Oak Environmental Assessment

Councilwoman Pugliese called the work session to order at 6:00pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Center, One Central Square. Also present were Vice Chairwoman Tompkins, Council members Morante, Gnazzo and Carrier, Town Manager Lee, Assistant to the Town Manager Colby, Attorney Chomick and Town Clerk Skultety.

Also, in attendance were, David Fiereck, Sr Vice President of Loureiro Engineering in charge of the Environmental groups in the company, Samuel Butcher of the Brownfields Assessment group, Clinton Brown, head of civil engineering and Sarah Burkhalter-Sweeney project geologist from Loureiro Engineering Associates, Inc.

Town Manager Lee mentioned the purpose of the meeting was to review the environmental study that was conducted by Loureiro Engineering Associates with regards to the White Oak Property.

Part of the scope of service was to look at environmental condition of the property based on prior uses. A Phase I Environmental Assessment was performed to look for potential impacts to the property. Soil and ground water samplings were taken. Some contamination was found. It was noted that the property is located within the 100YR Flood Zone and Floodway as well.

The end use of the property would take into consideration managing the floodplain and floodway, managing the contamination and balancing that with the use of the property.

Discussion continued with proposals for developing the property. In summary the one proposal had commercial use and mixed use, making the river more accessible and having potential apartments. Another was having commercial, office/commercial, retail, a courtyard area, recreational/multiuse area and pathways near the Pequabuck River. The other made use of more apartment space, commercial space, more parking areas and recreational areas as well.

Town Council members commented on the proposals and voiced their concerns. Town Manager Lee stated the town may acquire the property for taxes but does not see it being the developer.

With direction from the Town Council and Town staff, the next steps would be to review a remediation action plan, engage an environmental attorney and explore the Connecticut Brownfields Programs for redevelopment and advise moving forward.

MINUTES PLAINVILLE TOWN COUNCIL

10/7/19 Page 1 of 20

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL CENTER REGULAR MEETING October 7, 2019 – 7:00p.m.

I. <u>PRESENTATIONS:</u>

II. <u>PUBLIC HEARING</u>

- 1. Sewer User Fee
- 2. Proposed amendments to Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

III. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Minutes of September 16, 2019 Special and Regular Meetings

IV. <u>ANNOUNCEMENTS – REPORTS</u>

V. <u>APPOINTMENTS/RESIGNATIONS</u>

- 1. Fire Department
- 2. Appointments and Re-appointments to Boards and Commissions

VI. <u>BOARD OF EDUCATION LIAISON (3rd Monday Meetings Only)</u>

VII. <u>REPORT OF TOWN ATTORNEY</u>

VIII. <u>REPORT OF TOWN MANAGER</u>

- 1. Small Cities Grant Award
- 2. Department of Transportation Property Acquisition-Tomlinson Avenue Bridge
- 3. Robertson Airport Runway Repair
- 4. Reschedule 2nd October Town Council Meeting
- 5. Happenings

IX. <u>PUBLIC COMMENTS</u>

X. OLD BUSINESS

XI. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

- 1. Sewer User Rate-See Addendum
- 2. Consider Proposed Amendment to Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance-See Addendum

10/7/19

Page 2 of 20

- 3. Department of Transportation Property Acquisition
- 4. Bid #2020-04, Robertson Airport Runway Repair
- 5. Tax Refunds-See Addendum

XII. OTHER DISCUSSIONS OF INTEREST

XIII. MATTER APPROPRIATE FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. Town Manager Lee Evaluation

XIV. <u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

The regular meeting was called to order at 7:00pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Center, One Central Square. Councilman Cox Attorney Chomick were in attendance; Councilman Wazorko was absent.

Councilman Carrier led the Pledge of Allegiance.

I. <u>PRESENTATIONS:</u>

II. <u>PUBLIC HEARING</u>

- 1. Sewer User Fee
- 2. Proposed Amendment to Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Town Clerk Skultety read the following legal notice:

LEGAL NOTICE TOWN OF PLAINVILLE TOWN COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING OCTOBER 7, 2019

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Plainville Town Council will hold a public hearing at 7:00pm on Monday, October 7, 2019 in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Center, One Central Square, to consider the following:

- 1. Sewer user rate for the period November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020
- 2. Proposed amendments to an ordinance entitled, "FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION"

Copies of the proposed rates and amendments are available at the Town Clerk's office.

Dated at Plainville, Connecticut this 3rd day of October 2019.

10/7/19 Page 3 of 20

In regard to the sewer user rates, Town Manager Lee reviewed the proposed increase and projections of the sewer fund for the next seven years.

Town Manager Lee also explained the proposed amendments will bring the Flood Damage Prevention ordinance in compliance with FEMA's regulations.

Chairwoman Pugliese opened the hearing for comments.

John Kisluk, 65 Forestville Ave spoke in favor of the 2% increase.

Joel Edman, 63 Hollyberry Ln commented on the sewer rates 45 years ago.

Joanne Edman, 166 West Main St feels this is just another tax.

Dave Albert, 56 Hollyberry Ln would like to get an email reminder for the second installment.

Hearing no more comments the hearing was closed.

III. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Councilwoman Tompkins motioned to approve the minutes of September 16, 2019 Special and Regular Meetings. The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

IV. <u>ANNOUNCEMENTS – REPORTS</u>

Councilwoman Morante complimented the volunteers and their efforts with the Pequabuck River Clean-Up event. She also acknowledged the Library and their selection of data base online programs.

Chairwoman Pugliese reminded the public of the upcoming Pumpkin Festival on October 19 and mentioned one new event will be to guess the weight and circumference of the giant pumpkin. She also attended the Grand re-opening of the Big Y and commented on its interesting family history.

V. <u>APPOINTMENTS/RESIGNATION</u>

1. Fire Department

Councilman Cox motioned to:

- a. Appoint Phillipe Brochu, 24 Hemingway Street, to the Plainville Fire Department as a probationary firefighter
- b. Accept with regret the resignation of Zachary Bishop from the Plainville Fire Department

The motion was seconded by Vice Chairwoman Tompkins and passed 6-0.

10/7/19 Page 4 of 20

VI. <u>BOARD OF EDUCATION LIAISON (3rd Monday Meetings Only)</u>

VII. <u>REPORT OF TOWN ATTORNEY</u>

No report was offered.

VIII. <u>REPORT OF TOWN MANAGER</u>

Town Manager Lee presented and discussed the following topics:

• Small Cities Grant Award

The Governor's Office recently announced that the Town was awarded a \$1.5M grant to make improvements to 80 senior housing units managed by the Plainville Housing Authority. The improvements would involve all the units in the Centerview Village and Woodmoor Manor complexes.

The grant would be used to replace existing bathtubs with "walk-in" showers and make ADA improvements to five kitchens.

The monies would come from the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Program. This is a competitive program and Plainville was only one of thirteen Towns in Connecticut to receive such a grant. Town staff worked with the Housing Authority to put together a very detailed application. Town Manager Lee thanked Lisa Metayer and Cal Hauburger from who led the effort to work with the Housing Authority to finalize the Application.

It is anticipated that the improvements would be started in early 2020.

• Department of Transportation Property Acquisition – Tomlinson Avenue Bridge

The Town is moving closer to replacing the Tomlinson Avenue Bridge over the Quinnipiac River. Town staff is anticipating that the replacement could occur next summer.

As part of the project, the State D.O.T. would like to acquire from the Town a small parcel of land. This parcel is located to the north of Tomlinson and includes a portion of the river as well. The proposed acquisition totals 402 square feet.

Additionally, the D.O.T. is also requesting two easements from the Town. The first easement is 122 square feet and is located north of Tomlinson and would be used to install rip-rap on the slope to protect the road. The second easement totaling 6,333 square feet would be a construction easement to allow for the reconstruction of the bridge.

Although the Town is expected to manage the project, the State D.O.T. is requiring the acquisition and easements because federal funds are involved with the project. When the project is completed, the State will return the property to the Town.

10/7/19 Page 5 of 20 There is an item under **New Business** regarding this request from the D.O.T. If approved, Town staff will bring this matter to the Planning & Zoning Commission for an 8-24 referral.

Robertson Airport Runway Repair

A recent inspection of the Robertson Airport runway revealed cracks that have developed in the pavement. Many of the cracks were occurring along the "cold joints" between the sections of pavement and are considered normal "wear & tear". These run basically the length of the runway.

There were also several larger cracks that run across the runway that appear to be located over underground utilities.

At their meeting held on September 23rd, the Aviation Commission reviewed the issue with the runway. Their unanimous recommendation is that the cracks be repaired before the winter months to avoid potential damage from water getting under the pavement.

Various options were reviewed. The Aviation Commission determined that the best course of action at this time is to crack fill all the problem areas.

A proposal was received from Santoro, Inc. of Newington to crack seal the runway at a cost of \$19,375. Monies for this work would come from the Airport Operating Fund. The Airport operating fund currently has a balance of \pm \$550K.

Santoro is being recommended because they have done similar type of work at other airports and they are available to perform the work in a timely manner before the winter months.

• Reschedule 2nd October Town Council Meeting

The next Town Council meeting is scheduled for October 21st. On that date, Town Manager Lee will be attending the International City Manager's Conference in Nashville. Recognizing that the Town Council has historically cancelled the meeting scheduled the night before Election Day, it's being suggested that the Town Council cancel the October 21st and November 4th meetings and schedule a meeting on October 28th. If the Town Council agrees with this recommendation, Town staff will make the appropriate notifications.

• Town Manager Library Gatherings

Last Spring, Town Manager Lee held some gatherings at the Library for residents to stop by and discuss with him any issues of interest. He found these gatherings productive and it gave people the opportunity to have a more in-depth discussions regarding current projects and issues. Residents had the opportunity to hear from their fellow neighbors as well.

Town Manager Lee has scheduled another round of gatherings for Thursday, November 14th, Wednesday, December 4th and Thursday, January 9th. All these sessions will run from 6:00 to 8:00 pm at the Library near the fireplace.

• Happenings

Assistant to the Town Manager Colby reported there were approximately 120 attendees for the 150th Historic Bus and Trolley Tour and on activities within the Senior Center. More information may be found on the town's website; <u>www.plainvillect.com</u>.

IX. <u>PUBLIC COMMENTS</u>

John Kisluk, 65 Forestville Ave announced he is registering as a Write In Candidate.

Roberta Lauria, 18 Perron Rd spoke in opposition to the trail and about the recent Historic Tour.

Joel Edman, 63 Hollyberry Ln spoke against Alignment C.

Joanne Edman, 166 West Main St strongly opposes Alignment C.

Jessie Salley, 26 Ashford Rd thanked the 150th Committee and the Historical Society for their part in the Historic Tour.

Dave Albert, 56 Hollyberry Ln questioned the Town's recycling practices and the benefits.

X. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

1. Sewer User Rate- See Addendum

Vice Chairwoman Tompkins motioned for the Town Council acting as the Water Pollution Control Authority to increase the Sewer User Rate by 2% for the period November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020. The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

2. <u>Consider Proposed Amendments to Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance-See</u> <u>Addendum</u>

Vice Chairwoman Tompkins motioned to adopt the proposed amendments to an ordinance entitled, "Flood Damage Prevention". The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

3. Department of Transportation Property Acquisition

Vice Chairwoman Tompkins motioned to approve the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation's proposed acquisition for the Rehabilitation of Tomlinson Avenue Bridge and authorize Town Manager Lee to execute all applicable documents. The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

4. <u>Bid #2020-04, Robertson Airport Runway Repair</u>

Councilman Cox motioned waive the bid process and award Bid #2020-04, Robertson Airport Runway Repair, to Santoro, Inc., Newington, CT, in the amount of \$19,375. The motion was seconded by Vice Chairwoman Tompkins and passed 6-0.

5. <u>Tax Refunds-See Addendum</u>

Vice Chairwoman Tompkins motioned to approve the tax refunds as listed on the Addendum. The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

XI. OTHER DISCUSSIONS OF INTEREST

Councilwoman Morante suggested the Recycling and Solid Waste Committee be invited to a future Town Council meeting to discuss an education campaign for the public regarding recycling.

XII. <u>MATTER APPROPRIATE FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION</u> 1. Town Manager Evaluation

At 8:00pm Vice Chairwoman Tompkins motioned to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing the Town Manager's evaluation. The motion was seconded by Councilman Cox and passed 6-0.

The Executive Session was motioned to end at 8:30pm by Vice Chairwoman Tompkins, seconded by Councilman Cox and unanimously passed.

No further action was taken.

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:31pm.

Respectfully submitted by,

Carol A. Skultety, Town Clerk & Clerk of the Town Council

Town of Plainville, CT Sewer Rates Current/Approved For the Fiscal Year Period November 1, 2019 - October 31, 2020

	Current	Approved	Approved
Description	Rate	Increase	Rate
Standard Charge, per 1,000 Cubic Feet Effluent Discharge	\$ 55.80	2.00%	\$ 56.92
Minimum Charge	\$ 399.76	2.00%	\$ 407.76
Well Users	\$ 495.68	2.00%	\$ 505.58
Effluent Discharge, per 1,000 Gallons	\$ 159.92	2.00%	\$ 163.12

Chapter 225 FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION

Article V; Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction; sections §225-17, 225-18, 225-20, 225-21D, 225-23, 225-24A, 225-25A, 225-26 and 225-27 are to be amended and read:

§ 225-17 General standards.

In all areas of special flood hazard the following provisions are required:

- A. New construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure;
- B. New construction, substantial improvements and structures that have sustained substantial damage shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment that are flood damage resistant and conform to the provisions of FEMA Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Material Requirements. This includes but is not limited to flooring, interior and exterior walls, wall coverings and other materials installed below the Base Flood Elevation plus one (1) foot;
- C. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;
- D. The bottom of all electrical, heating, plumbing, ventilation and air conditioning equipment, appliances, fixtures and components, HVAC duct work and duct systems and any other utility service equipment, facilities, machinery, or connections serving the structure shall be elevated one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation, (BFE). This includes but is not limited to furnaces, oil or propane tanks, air conditioners, heat pumps, hot water heaters, ventilation duct work, washer and dryer hook-ups, electrical junction boxes, and circuit breaker boxes. Systems, fixtures, equipment and components shall not be mounted on or penetrate through breakaway walls intended to fail under flood conditions. Connections or other equipment that must be located below the BFE plus 1-foot elevation are permitted only when no other elevation alternative is available provided, they are designed and installed to prevent water from entering and or accumulating within the components and to resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and stresses, including the effects or buoyance,

10/7/19 Page 9 of 20 during the occurrence of the base flood event. Electrical wiring systems that must be located below the BFE plus one (1.0) foot shall conform to the standards for wet locations;

- E. New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system;
- F. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the system into floodwaters and shall be subject to review and approval by the Superintendent of the Plainville Water Pollution Control Authority;
- G. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding and shall be subject to review and approval by the Plainville Town Sanitarian;
- H. Underground tanks shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral movement under conditions of the base flood. Aboveground storage tanks which are located outside or inside of a structure must be elevated one (1.0) foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) or shall be securely anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement under conditions of the base flood. Where elevated on platforms, the platforms shall be cantilevered from or knee braced to the building or shall be supported on elevated foundations that conform to the standards for the particular flood zone as described herein. Anchored tanks must have the top of the fill pipe located at least one (1) foot above the BFE and have a screw fill cap that does not allow for the infiltration of flood water;
- I. In any portion of a watercourse which is altered or relocated, the flood-carrying capacity shall be maintained;
- J. A structure already in compliance with the provisions of this chapter shall not be made noncompliant by any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to the structure;
- K. Compensatory storage-The water holding capacity of the floodplain, except those areas which are tidally influenced shall not be reduced. Any reduction caused by filling, new construction or substantial improvements involving an increase in footprint to the structure shall be compensated for by deepening and or widening the floodplain. Storage shall be provided on site unless easements have been gained from adjacent property owners; it shall be provided within the same hydraulic reach and a volume not previously used for flood storage; it shall be hydraulically comparable and incrementally equal to the theoretical volume of flood water at each elevation up to and including the 100-year flood elevation, which would be displaced by the proposed project. Such compensatory volume shall have an unrestricted connection to the same waterway or water body. Compensatory storage can be provided off site if approved by the Town of Plainville;
- L. Equal Conveyance-Within the floodplain, except those areas which are tidally influence, as designated on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the Town of Plainville, encroachments resulting from filling, new construction or substantial improvements involving an increase in foot print of the structure are prohibited unless the applicant provides certification by a registered professional engineer demonstrating with supporting hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that such encroachments shall not result in any 0.00 feet increase in flood levels. Work within the floodplain and the land adjacent to the floodplain including work to

10/7/19 Page 10 of 20 provide compensatory storage shall not be constructed in such a way so as to cause an increase in flood stage or flood velocity.

§ 225-18 Determination of Base Flood Elevations.

- A. The Town Engineer shall require Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data be provided with any application for new construction, substantial improvements, repair to structures which sustained substantial damage or other development in Zone A without a FEMA-published BFE, (un-numbered A Zone). A registered professional engineer must determine the BFE in accordance with accepted hydrologic and hydraulic engineering practices and document the technical methods used. Studies, analyses and computations shall be submitted in sufficient detail to allow thorough review and approval. The Town Engineer shall obtain, review and reasonably utilize any BFE and floodway data available from a federal, state or other source including data developed for subdivision proposals as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements, repairs to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development in un-numbered A Zones. If no BFE can be determined, the lowest floor, including the basement must be elevated two (2) feet above the adjacent grade next to the structure.
- B. When BFEs have been established with Zones A1-30 but a regulatory floodway has not been designated, the Town Engineer must require that no new construction, substantial improvements, repairs to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development including fill shall be permitted which will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point when all existing and anticipated development is considered cumulatively with the proposed development.
- C. The Town Engineer may request floodway data of an applicant for watercourse without FEMA published floodways. When such data is provided by an applicant or whenever such data is available from other sources, the Town of Plainville shall adopt a regulatory floodway based on the principle that the floodway must convey the waters of the base flood without increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1) foot at any point within the Town.
- D. The Town Engineer shall obtain, review and reasonable utilize any BFE and floodway data available from a federal, state or other source as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements, repair to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development in any area of potential, demonstrable or historical flooding based on the standards described herein.

§ 225-19 Specific standards.

- A. In all areas of special flood hazard, Zones A1-30, AE, and AH, where base flood elevation data has been provided, as set forth in § 225-8 or 225-16A(10), the following provisions are required:
 - (1) All new construction, substantial improvements, and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage which are residential structures shall have the bottom of the lowest floor including the basement elevated one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). Electrical, plumbing, machinery or other utility equipment that service the structure must be elevated one (1) foot above the BFE.
 - (2) Manufactured homes shall be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated to or above the BFE and be securely

anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system. Manufactured homes placed or substantially improved within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE shall meet one of the following location criteria: outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision; in a new manufactured home park or subdivision; in an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision; or in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision in which a manufactured home has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood.

- B. Nonresidential construction.
- (1) All new construction, substantial improvements and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage which are commercial, industrial or non-residential structures shall:
 - (a) Have the bottom of the lowest floor including the basement elevated one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation(BFE); or
 - (b) In lieu of being elevated, non-residential structures may be dry flood-proofed to one (1) foot above the BFE provided that together with all attendant utilities and sanitary facilities the area of the structure below the required elevation are watertight with wall substantially impermeable to the passage of water and provided that such structures are composed of structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall review and or develop structural design specifications and plans for the construction and shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with acceptable standards of practice for meeting the provisions of this section. Such certification shall be provided to the Town Engineer on the FEMA Floodproofing Certificate Form 81-65
 - (c) The bottom of all electrical, plumbing, machinery or other equipment that service the structure must be elevated one (1) foot above the BFE.
- C. Manufactured (mobile) Homes
- (1). In all Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA), any manufactured (mobile) homes to be newly placed, undergoing a substantial improvement or repair as a result of substantial damage shall be elevated to that the bottom of the frame is located one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). The manufactured home must also meet all the construction standards of Section 225-19B1. The foundation and anchorage of manufactured homes located in floodways shall be designed and constructed in accordance with ASCE24. This includes SFHAs outside a manufactured home park or subdivision, in existing manufactured home park or subdivision or on a site in an existing park which a manufactured home has incurred substantial damage as the result of flooding.
- (2). All manufactured (mobile) homes within a SFHA shall be placed on a permanent foundation which itself is securely anchored and to which the structure is securely anchored so that it will resist floatation, lateral movement and hydrostatic pressures. Anchoring may include but not be limited to the use of over the top or frame ties to ground anchors.

- (3). All manufactured (mobile) homes within a SFHA shall be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage. Adequate access and drainage should be provided. Elevation construction standards include piling foundations placed no more than ten (10) feet apart and reinforcement is provided for piers more than six (6) feet above ground level.
- D. Fully Enclosed Areas Below the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) of Elevated Building.

All new construction, substantial improvements or repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage whether residential or non-residential that include fully enclosed areas formed by a foundation and other exterior walls shall have the lowest elevated to one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation (BEF). The elevated building shall be designed to preclude finished living space below the lowest floor and be designed to allow the entry and exit of flood waters to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls (wet floodproofing). Designs for complying with this requirement must be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect as meeting the requirements of ASCE 24 Section 2.6.2.2 or meet the following minimum criteria listed in sections 1-8 below:

(1) Provide minimum of two (2) openings (hydraulic flood vents) having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every one square foot of area subject to flooding. The enclosed area is measured on the exterior of the enclosure walls. The hydraulic openings must be located on at least two different walls of each enclosure area. If the structure has more than one enclosed area the opening must be installed in the exterior walls of each enclosed area so that flood waters can enter directly from the outside;

- (2) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the higher of either the final grade or floor elevation or the finished exterior grade adjacent to the outside foundation wall. At least one side of the structure's fully enclosed area must be at or above grade. Fill placed around the foundation walls must be graded so that the elevation inside the enclosed area is equal to or higher than the adjacent outside elevation on at least one side of the building. The finished floor of the enclosed area shall be no lower than the bottom of the foundation openings. The foundation slab of a residential structure including the slab, or a crawlspace must be set equal to the outside finished grade on at least one side of the building;
- (3) The openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided they permit the automatic entry and exit of flood waters in both directions without external influence or control such as human intervention including the use of electrical and other non-automatic mechanical means. These coverings must not block or impede the automatic flow of floodwaters into and out of the enclosed area. Other coverings may be designed and certified by a registered professional engineer or approved by the Town Engineer;
- (4) Openings shall not be less than three (3) inches in any direction in the plane of the wall;
- (5) The area cannot be used as finished living space. Use of the enclosed area shall be the minimum necessary and shall only be used for the parking of vehicles, building access or limited storage. Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimum necessary to allow for the parking of vehicles. Limited storage of

maintenance equipment in connection with the premises or entry to the living area. The enclosed area shall not be used for human habitation;

- (6) All interior walls, floors and ceiling materials located below one (1) foot above the Base Flooding Elevation (BFE) shall be unfinished and resistant to flood damage in accordance with FEMA Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Requirements;
- (7) Electrical, plumbing, HVAC ductwork, machinery or other utility equipment and connections that service the structure (including but not limited to furnaces, oil or propane tanks, air conditioners, heat pumps, hot water heaters, ventilation, washer and dryer hook-ups, electrical junction boxes, circuit breaker boxes and food freezers are prohibited in the fully enclosed area below the Base Flooding Elevation (BFE) plus one (1) foot. Utilities or service equipment located in this enclosed area even if elevated one (1) foot above the BFE in the space will subject the structure to increased flood insurance rates; and
- (8) A residential building with a structurally attached garage having the floor slab below the Base Flooding Elevation (BFE) is considered an enclosed area below the BFE and must meet the standards describe above (1 thru 8). A garage attached to a residential structure constructed with a garage floor slab below the BFE must be designed to allow the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters in both directions. Flood openings or vents are required in the exterior wall of the garage or in the garage doors. Garage doors that must be manual opened do not meet the flood vent opening requirements. In addition to the automatic entry of floodwaters the area of the garage below the BFE plus one (1) foot must be constructed with flood damage-resistant materials per the requirements of FEMA Technical Bulletin 2. Garages attached to non-residential structures must also meet the above noted requirements or be dry floodproofed as per the requirements previously noted.
- E. Floodways. Located within areas of special flood hazard established in § **225-8** are areas designated as floodways on the community's Flood Boundary and Floodway Map. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of floodwaters which carry debris and potential projectiles and have erosion potential, the following provisions shall apply:
 - (1) Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other developments, unless certification (with supporting technical data) by a registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that encroachments shall not result in any (0.00) increase in flood levels during occurrence of the base flood discharge. Buildings and structures shall be designed and constructed in accordance with ASCE 24.
 - (2) In zones where base flood elevations have been determined, but before a floodway is designated, no new construction, substantial improvement or other development (including fill) shall be permitted which will increase base flood elevations (BFE) more than one (1) foot at any point along the watercourse when all anticipated development is considered cumulatively with proposed development.

- (3) The Town may request floodway data of an applicant for watercourses without FEMA-published floodways. When such data is provided by an applicant or whenever such data is available from any other source in response to the Town's request or not, the Town shall adopt a regulatory floodway based on the principle that the floodway must be able to convey the waters of the base flood without increasing the water surface elevation more than one foot at any point along the watercourse.
- (4) The water holding capacity of the floodplain, except those areas that are tidally influenced, shall not be reduced. Any reduction caused by filling, new construction, or substantial improvements involving an increase in footprint to the structure shall be compensated for by deepening and/or widening of the floodplain. Storage shall be provided on site, unless easements have been gained from adjacent property owners; it shall be provided within the same hydraulic reach and a volume not previously used for flood storage; it shall be hydraulically comparable and incrementally equal to the theoretical volume of floodwater at each elevation, up to and including the one-hundred-year flood elevation, which would be displaced by the proposed project. Such compensatory volume shall have an unrestricted hydraulic connection to the same waterway or water body. Compensatory storage can be provided off site if approved by the municipality.[1]
- (5) Within the floodplains, except those areas which are tidally influenced, as designated on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the community, encroachments resulting from filling, new construction or substantial improvements involving an increase in footprint of the structure are prohibited unless the applicant provides certification by a registered professional engineer demonstrating, with supporting hydrologic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice, that such encroachment shall not result in any (0.00 foot) increase in flood levels (base flood elevation). Work within the floodplain and land adjacent to the floodplain, including work to provide compensatory storage, shall not be constructed in such a way so as to cause an increase in flood stage or flood velocity.
- (6) Above-ground storage tanks (oil, propane, etc.) which are located outside or inside of the structure must either be elevated above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) on a concrete pad or be securely anchored with tie-down straps to prevent flotation or lateral movement, have the top of the fill pipe extended above the BFE, and have a screw fill cap that does not allow for the infiltration of floodwater.
- (7) If any portion of a structure lies within the special flood hazard area (SFHA), the entire structure is considered to be in the SFHA. The structure includes any attached additions, garages, decks, sunrooms or any other structure attached to the main structure. (Decks or porches that extend into a more restrictive zone will require the entire structure to meet the requirements of the more restrictive zone.)
- (8) If a structure lies within two or more flood zones, the construction standards of the most restrictive zone shall apply to the entire structure (i.e., V Zone is more restrictive than A Zone; structure must be built to the highest BFE). The structure includes any attached additions, garages, decks, sunrooms, or any other structure

attached to the main structure. (Decks or porches that extend into a more restrictive zone will require the entire structure to meet the requirements of the more restrictive zone.)

- (9) New construction, substantial improvements and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage cannot be constructed or located entirely or partially over water.
- F. Shallow Flooding Areas. Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are areas designated as shallow flooding areas (AO and AH Zones). These areas have flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist and where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate. In AO and AH Zones the following provision apply:
 - (1) For residential structures, all new construction, substantial improvements and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage shall have the lowest floor, including the basement elevated above the highest adjacent grade at lease as high as one (1) foot above the depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Tate Map (FIRM). If no depth number is specified, the lowest floor including the basement shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade.
 - (2) For non-residential structures all construction, substantial improvements and repair to structures that have sustained damage shall have the lowest floor including the basement at least as high as one (1) foot above the depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). If no depth number is specified, the lowest floor including the basement shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade or together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities be completely floodproofed to above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as one (1) foot above the depth number specified on the FIRM or if no depth number is specified, at lease (3) feet above the flood level shall be watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. Designs for complying with these requirements must be certified by either a registered professional engineer or architect.
 - (3) On-site drainage for all proposed structures in AO and AH Zones located on slopes shall provide adequate drainage paths to guide flood waters around and away from such structures.
 - (4) Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor in AO and AH Zones must comply with the provisions of Section 225-19D for hydraulic flood vents.

§ 225-20 Recreational vehicles.

Recreational vehicles placed on sites within a Special Flood Hazard Area shall either (1) be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and (2) be fully licensed and ready for highway use, or (3) meet all the general standards of elevation and anchoring as specified herein. A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices and has no permanently attached additions.

§ 225-21 Requirements in special flood hazard areas.

In all special flood hazard areas, the following requirements shall apply:

- A. All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage;
- B. All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, located and constructed to minimize flood damage;
- C. All subdivision proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazard;
- D. The Town Engineer shall require the applicant to provide BFE data for all subdivision proposal in or partially in a SFHA including manufactured home parks. In SFHA where the BFE is not available, the applicant shall provide hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analysis performed by a registered professional that develops a BFE for the subdivision;
- E. Variances shall be issued only upon a showing of good and sufficient cause, a determination that failure to grant the variance will result in exceptional hardship, and a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances;
- F. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the difference between the base flood elevation and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and stating that the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk, resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation up to amounts as high as \$25 for \$100 of insurance; and
- G. The Building Official shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency upon request.

§ 225-23 Appeals.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals or any person owning land which abuts or is within a radius of 100 feet of the land in question may appeal within 15 days after such decision to the State Superior Court of the Judicial District of New Britain at New Britain, as provided in § 8-8 of the General Statutes. The Town Engineer shall maintain the records of all appeals and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Agency (FEMA).

§ 225-24 Specific situation variances.

A. Buildings on historic register. Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic Places without regard to the procedures set forth in the remainder of this article, except for § 225-25C (1) to (4), and provided the proposed reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration will not result in the structure losing its historical designation.

§ 225-25 Considerations for granting of variances.

- A. In passing upon such applications, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this chapter. Technical evaluations, relevant factors and standards shall include the following:
- (1) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;

- (2) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
- (3) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner;
- (4) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
- (5) The necessity of the facility to waterfront location, in the case of a functionally dependent facility;
- (6) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;
- (7) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
- (8) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program for that area;
- (9) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
- (10) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and
- (11) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems and streets and bridges.
- B. Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this chapter, the Zoning Board of Appeals may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this chapter.
- C. Conditions for variances.
- (1) Variances shall be issued only upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief, and in the instance of a historical building, a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary so as to not destroy the historic character and design of the building.
- (2) Variances shall be issued only upon a showing of good and sufficient cause, a determination that failure to grant the variance will result in exceptional hardship, and a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.
- (3) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the difference between the Base Flood Elevation and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and stating that the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation up to amounts as high as \$25 for \$100 of insurance.

(4) The Building Official shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency upon request.

§225-26 Enforcement

- A. Each Flood Permit shall authorize as a condition of approval, the Town Engineer or their designated agent to make regular inspections of the subject property. The Town Engineer or their designated agent is also authorized to inspect any property in a SFHA where it appears a violation(s) to these regulations is occurring.
- B. If the Town Engineer finds any individual or entity undertaking any construction, substantial

improvement, filling or any other activity or maintaining a condition which is in violation of these

regulations, the Town Engineer shall:

- Issue a written order by certified mail return receipt requested to the subject owner ordering the activity to cease and ordering the property owner to obtain a Flood Permit prior to continuing with the activity or if appropriate ordering all violations and or obstructions be removed from the SFHA immediately;
- (2) Notify the Building Official and request that any Building Permit(s) in force be revoked or suspended and that a stop work order be issued;
- (3) The Town Engineer may suspend or revoke a Flood Permit if it is found that the applicant has not complied with the terms, conditions, or limitations set forth in the permit or had exceeded the scope of the work set forth in the application. Prior to revoking any permit, the Town Engineer shall issue a notice to the permittee personally or by certified mail receipt return requested setting forth the facts or conduct which warrants the intended actions.
- C. Failure to comply with any written order issued under this section shall be considered a violation of these regulations and is subject to the penalties described in Section 225-27.
- D. In the event the violations and or obstructions are not promptly addressed, the Town Engineer may correct the violations utilizing any necessary means and place a lien against the property.
- E. Any person subjected to an enforcement action pursuant to this regulation may appeal any decision or determination of the Town Engineer to the Zoning Board of Appeals in accordance with the procedures set forth in this regulation, (Article VII Variance and Appeals; Enforcement). Such person shall provide such information as necessary including appropriate certifications from registered professional engineers or architects in order to substantiate the claim(s) that the requirement(s), decision(s), or determination(s) of the Town Engineer was in error or unwarranted.

§ 225-27 Penalties for offenses.

Violation of the provisions of this chapter or failure to comply with any of its requirements, including violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with variances or

10/7/19 Page 19 of 20 special exceptions, shall constitute a misdemeanor. Any person who violates this chapter or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, upon conviction thereof, be fined not more than \$250 per day if proven done willfully and \$100 per day if not, or imprisoned for not more than 10 days for each day of violation, or both, and, in addition, shall pay all costs and reasonable legal fees involved in the case. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Town of Plainville from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

*	*	*	*	*

	Refunds	10/7/2019	
		Current Year	Amount
1	Bishop, Deana or Timotl	\$221.22	
2	Bloom, Kayla, 194 Milfo	ord St Ext	\$40.41
3	Bouchard, Rosemary, 10 Washington St		\$172.06
4	JP Morgan Chase Bank NA, Fort Worth, TX		\$380.89
5	Mazurek, David or Bonnie, 71 W Broad St		\$29.81
6	Shallow, Helen, 194 Stillwell Dr		\$40.48
7	Tolis, Angelo, Jr, 17 Mo	untain View Dr	\$88.28
	Total		\$973.15
		Prior Year	Amount
1	Hyundai Lease Titling T	rust, Irvine, CA	\$579.38
3	Wells Fargo, Des Moine	s, IA	\$68.68
4	Wells Fargo, Des Moines, IA		\$66.34
5	Wells Fargo, Des Moine	s, IA	\$1.52
	Total		\$715.92
		Sewer User Fee	Amount
1	Hobson, Richard, 87 Wo	odford Ave Ext	\$24.00
2	Law Office of Jeremy Ta	aylor, Plantsville, CT	\$205.88
3	Law Office of Jeremy Ta	aylor, Plantsville, CT	\$473.97
4	Law Office of Jeremy Ta	ylor, Plantsville, CT	\$519.69
	Total		\$1,223.54